
NOTICE

OF

MEETING

BERKSHIRE PENSION BOARD
will meet on

TUESDAY, 11TH SEPTEMBER, 2018

At 1.30 pm

at

MINSTER COURT - 22-30 YORK ROAD MAIDENHEAD 

TO: MEMBERS OF THE BERKSHIRE PENSION BOARD

TONY PETTITT (CHAIRMAN), ALAN CROSS (VICE-CHAIRMAN), NIKKI CRAIG, JEFF 
FORD AND NEIL WILCOX 

Karen Shepherd – Service Lead - Democratic Services - Issued: 3 September 2018

Members of the Press and Public are welcome to attend Part I of this meeting. The agenda is available on the Council’s 
web site at www.rbwm.gov.uk or contact the Panel Administrator  Andy Carswell 01628 796319

Fire Alarm - In the event of the fire alarm sounding or other emergency, please leave the building quickly and calmly by the nearest 
exit.  Do not stop to collect personal belongings and do not use the lifts.  Do not re-enter the building until told to do so by a 
member of staff.

Recording of Meetings –In line with the council’s commitment to transparency the meeting will be audio recorded, and filmed and 
broadcast through the online application Periscope. The footage can be found through the council’s main Twitter feed @RBWM or 
via the Periscope website. The audio recording will also be made available on the RBWM website, after the meeting. 

Filming, recording and photography of public Council meetings  may be undertaken by any person attending the meeting. By 
entering the meeting room you are acknowledging that you may be audio or video recorded and that this recording will be in the 
public domain. If you have any questions regarding the council’s policy, please speak to the Democratic Services or Legal 
representative at the meeting.

Public Document Pack

http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/


AGENDA

STANDING ITEMS

ITEM SUBJECT PAGE 
NO

1.  INTRODUCTION AND APOLOGIES

To receive any apologies for absence. 
 

-

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive any declarations of interest. 
 

7 - 8

3.  MINUTES

To approve the Part I minutes of the meeting held on April 17th 2018.
 

9 - 14

4.  SCHEME AND REGULATORY UPDATE AND INTEGRATED RISK 
MANAGEMENT

To receive a verbal update.
 

-

5.  INVESTMENT FUND POOLING UPDATE AND NEW INVESTMENT 
REGULATIONS

To receive a verbal update.
 

-



FOR INFORMATION

ITEM SUBJECT PAGE 
NO

6.  PENSION PANEL MINUTES AND STEWARDSHIP REPORT

To note the Minutes of the Berkshire Pension Fund Panel held on July 16th.
 

15 - 17

7.  ADMINISTRATION UPDATE

To receive a verbal update from Kevin Taylor, to include an update on 
Colleges, Housing Associations and Wokingham Schools.
 

-

8.  GDPR UPDATE

To receive a verbal update from Kevin Taylor, to include updates on Privacy 
Notices and Memorandum of Understanding regarding compliance with Data 
Protection Law.
 

19 - 36

9.  ACTION TRACKER

To note the Action Tracker.
 

37 - 38



WORK PROGRAMME

ITEM SUBJECT PAGE 
NO

10.  REVIEW OF BOARD WORKPLAN

To review the Workplan.
 

39 - 40

11.  REVIEW OF DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To review Members’ declarations of interest.
 

41 - 44

12.  REVIEW OF INVESTMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT

To review the Investment Strategy Statement.
 

45 - 50

13.  REVIEW OF FUND'S ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS

To review the Annual Report.
 

51 - 114

14.  TRAINING REQUIREMENTS

To review the Members’ training log.
 

115 - 116



EMERGING ISSUES

ITEM SUBJECT PAGE 
NO

15.  NEW OR AMENDED RISKS

To discuss any new or amended risks.
 

-

16.  IDENTIFIED OR REGISTERED BREACHES

To note any identified or registered breaches.
 

-

17.  ANY OTHER BUSINESS

To discuss any other items of business.
 

-

18.  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

To consider passing the following resolution:-
 
“That under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public 
be excluded from the remainder of the meeting whilst discussion takes place 
on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in Paragraphs 1-7 of part I of Schedule 12A of the Act"
 

-



PART II

ITEM SUBJECT PAGE 
NO

19.  MINUTES 

To approve the Part II minutes of the meeting held on April 17th 2018.

(Not for publication by virtue of Paragraph 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6a, 7 of Part 
1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972)

117 - 118



 
MEMBERS’ GUIDE TO DECLARING INTERESTS IN MEETINGS  

 
Disclosure at Meetings 
 
If a Member has not disclosed an interest in their Register of Interests, they must make the declaration of 
interest at the beginning of the meeting, or as soon as they are aware that they have a DPI or Prejudicial 
Interest. If a Member has already disclosed the interest in their Register of Interests they are still required to 
disclose this in the meeting if it relates to the matter being discussed.   
 
A member with a DPI or Prejudicial Interest may make representations at the start of the item but must not 
take part in the discussion or vote at a meeting. The speaking time allocated for Members to make 
representations is at the discretion of the Chairman of the meeting.  In order to avoid any accusations of taking 
part in the discussion or vote, after speaking, Members should move away from the panel table to a public area 
or, if they wish, leave the room.  If the interest declared has not been entered on to a Members’ Register of 
Interests, they must notify the Monitoring Officer in writing within the next 28 days following the meeting.  

 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) (relating to the Member or their partner) include: 
 

 Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain. 

 Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit made in respect of any expenses occurred in 
carrying out member duties or election expenses. 

 Any contract under which goods and services are to be provided/works to be executed which has not been 
fully discharged. 

 Any beneficial interest in land within the area of the relevant authority. 

 Any licence to occupy land in the area of the relevant authority for a month or longer. 

 Any tenancy where the landlord is the relevant authority, and the tenant is a body in which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest. 

 Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where:  
a) that body has a piece of business or land in the area of the relevant authority, and  
b) either (i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued 
share capital of that body or (ii) the total nominal value of the shares of any one class belonging to the 
relevant person exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class. 

 
Any Member who is unsure if their interest falls within any of the above legal definitions should seek advice 
from the Monitoring Officer in advance of the meeting. 
 
A Member with a DPI should state in the meeting: ‘I declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in item x 
because xxx. As soon as we come to that item, I will leave the room/ move to the public area for the 
entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’ 
 
Or, if making representations on the item: ‘I declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in item x because xxx. 
As soon as we come to that item, I will make representations, then I will leave the room/ move to the 
public area for the entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’ 
 
Prejudicial Interests 
 
Any interest which a reasonable, fair minded and informed member of the public would reasonably believe is so 
significant that it harms or impairs the Member’s ability to judge the public interest in the item, i.e. a Member’s 
decision making is influenced by their interest so that they are not able to impartially consider relevant issues.   
 
A Member with a Prejudicial interest should state in the meeting: ‘I declare a Prejudicial Interest in item x 
because xxx. As soon as we come to that item, I will leave the room/ move to the public area for the 
entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’ 
 
Or, if making representations in the item: ‘I declare a Prejudicial Interest in item x because xxx. As soon as 
we come to that item, I will make representations, then I will leave the room/ move to the public area for 
the entire duration of the discussion and not take part in the vote.’ 
 
Personal interests 
 
Any other connection or association which a member of the public may reasonably think may influence a 
Member when making a decision on council matters.  
 

Members with a Personal Interest should state at the meeting: ‘I wish to declare a Personal Interest in item x 
because xxx’. As this is a Personal Interest only, I will take part in the discussion and vote on the 
matter. 7

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



BERKSHIRE PENSION BOARD

TUESDAY, 17 APRIL 2018

PRESENT: Tony Pettitt (Chairman), Alan Cross (Vice-Chairman), Jeff Ford and Neil 
Wilcox

Officers: Shilpa Manek, Rob Stubbs and Kevin Taylor

INTRODUCTION AND APOLOGIES 

The Chairman welcomed everyone to the meeting.

There were no apologies for absence.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Kevin Taylor declared an interest in the item on Pension Pooling, as an officer of the 
Berkshire Pension Fund.

MINUTES 

The Part I minutes of the previous meeting were agreed as an accurate record.

SCHEME AND REGULATORY UPDATE 

There were no updates for members. Officers were still awaiting amended regulations at this 
stage.

POOLING UPDATE 

Rob Stubbs, Deputy Director Place and Head of Finance, informed the Board that the 
business case had been signed in January 2018 by the Berkshire Pension Panel after they 
had received briefing in December 2017. The LPP Shareholders meeting would be attended 
by the Head of Finance, Rob Stubbs, the Managing Director, Alison Alexander, the Leader, 
Councillor Simon Dudley, the Chairman of the Berkshire Pension Panel and the Vice 
Chairman of the Berkshire Pension Panel. All had now been concluded and dialogue had 
taken place between staff and LPP. LPP had been given the authority to have dialogue with 
the actuary if required. Legally, there was a standard document in place which was very 
similar to other organisations in the country.

A report will be presented to the Berkshire Pension Panel on 21 May 2018 and then assets 
would start to be transferred from of 1 June 2018 There had been dialogue with the Ministry 
and they were content with our position.

To begin with the investments team would become a part of LPP and would move to London. 
The admin team would still be based here in Maidenhead. The plan was to embed the 
investments team first and then look again at the structure. LPP would make all reasonable 
adjustments.

LPP will take over the management of 100% of the Pension Fund’s assets including all legacy 
assets and consent assets, on 1 June 2018. This would be reviewed annually. RBWM would 
still be the responsible authority for the Berkshire Pension Fund. RBWM would still be relying 
on fund managers of which JP Morgan was the custodian, this would continue for now. LPP 

9

Agenda Item 3



would be managing our fund managers. The Vice Chairman asked about equity and was 
informed by Rob Stubbs that there were eight buckets but there are none in emerging markets 
which was currently being looked at sixty percent of assets should be easy to pool, with the 
remaining forty percent being considered over an 18-month period. RBWM are working very 
closely with Lancashire County Council. Two investment advisors would give independent 
advice.

The day to day administration of collecting payments from employees and paying pensions to 
retired members would still be carried out through administration at RBWM. LPP will now 
manage all assets with the intention that over ten years, the management fees would be 
lower.

There would be very little change to the governance structure. A report will be brought to the 
Panel meeting on 24 May 2018 highlighting that there would be no change to the Pension 
Board, the Advisory Panel and the Pension Panel. The Investment Working Group would be 
set up with the Advisory Panel Chairman, Head of Finance, two independent advisors is likely 
to be made up of the chairman and vice-chairman of  the Berkshire Pension Panel, a member 
of the Advisory Panel, the Borough’s 151 officer and 2 independent advisors.  IWG will meet 
will LPP at least on a quarterly basis. This would not be a decision making body, similar to 
what is in place currently.

Consideration to becoming a full shareholder of LPP will be given over an 18-month period  as 
assets are transferred.

The Chairman had recently attended a LGA Cross Pool Forum. The forum was particularly 
looking at governance structures and it was stated that local accountability would need to stay 
with each authority. There was no single model that fitted all as there were many models 
being used. However, this authority was mirroring at least one other authority. This was 
working well at Lancashire and at LPFA and we had very good relationships with Lancashire.
ACTION: Explore the appetite to meet with fellow board members, a process by which 
compares best practice.

STEWARDSHIP REPORT 

Kevin Taylor, Deputy Pension Fund Manager, reported that this was a regular quarterly report. 
However, since there had not been a Panel meeting since November 2017, this report was for 
two quarters.

The points discussed by the Board included:
 The Liquidity level – this would now settle due to the progress made in pooling with  

LPP.
 The deficit in table 1 of report – it was hoped that pooling would alleviate some of the 

stress. A deficit recovery plan is in place  to clear the deficit by 2040.
 53% of the current total active scheme members were now on i-Connect. This was 

now fully implemented except for Slough and Bracknell. The  Pension team was 
continuing to work with smaller employers to get them on board. Bracknell was in the 
process of changing its payroll and there had been a large turnover in staff. The  
Pension team is engaging with Bracknell and Slough and it is hoped they both would 
be on board by  year end 2019.

 Pension Administration Standards Association (PASA) – Over 100 desktop procedures 
have been written and accreditation applied for. 

 General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) – The Pension Fund was the first to take 
action in the Borough.

 GMP Reconciliation – This had been resolved. The values were up to date and 
accurate now.

 Wokingham Schools – On Agenda.

10



ACTION TRACKER 

There were three actions on the Action Tracker as below:

Action 
No.

Date of 
meeting

Action Item 
Description

Comments Assigned 
to

Status

12 26/11/2015 b) Adoption of 
Training Plan.

Board members to 
inform the DPFM of any 
training
completed.

Board 
Members

Open

13 26/11/2015 Pension 
Administration 
Strategy.

Board members to 
provide DPFM with a list 
of key
officers within their 
organisations to be 
added to Pension
Fund distribution list.

Board 
Members

Open

14 22/02/2016 Compliance 
with CIPFA 
audit 
guidelines.

Chair to write to s.151 
officer regarding 
Administering
Authority's compliance 
with CIPFA audit 
guidelines.

Billy 
Webster

Open

The Board members discussed these actions and Unanimously agreed to remove action 14.

DRAFT BUSINESS PLAN 2018/19 AND FUNDING STRATEGY STATEMENT 

The Board discussed the draft business plan 2018/19. The following points were raised:

 Section 5 – Business targets 2018/19 – it was confirmed that no actuals were shown in 
the table as the objectives were at borough level and not at corporate level.

 The staff of the Berkshire Pension Fund are employed by the Borough which is also 
the administering authority for the Royal County of Berkshire Pension Fund. The 
Pension Fund  is not a legal entity in its own right.

 There had been increased levels of sickness but these were for other reasons, not 
because of the move to LPP.

 The Board asked how staff satisfaction had been measured. It was confirmed that a 
staff survey had been used. The Chairman suggested that it would be better to record 
the last value reported. Section 5 was for 2017/18.

 There was a typo on page 43, the word “London” needed to be changed.

COLLEGE FUNDING UPDATE 

The Funding Strategy Statement should have been an appendix to the College Funding 
Update.

Amendments had been made to Paragraphs 3.25, 3.29 and 3.30 of the Funding Strategy 
Statement.

The Board Unanimously Agreed the changes to paragraphs 3.25, 3.29 and 3.30.

This would be discussed further in Part II.

FUTURE TRAINING REQUIREMENTS 

There were currently two vacancies on the Board and that would soon increase to three. The 
current Vice Chairman, Alan Cross, would no longer be the employer representative after the 
end of April 2018. Future new Board members would require training. 

11



The constitution stated that the Berkshire Pension Board must consist of 6 Members. This 
must consist of three Scheme Employer representatives and three Scheme Member 
representatives. A meeting was quorate when at least 50% of the Scheme member and 
Scheme Employer Representatives were present with at least 1 member being present 
from each group. For actions to be agreed, the Chairman or Vice Chairman must be in 
attendance. A meeting that becomes inquorate may continue but any decisions would be 
non-binding.

The immediate needs would change. Officers were advised to identify the training needs 
for new members by the next meeting.

All Board Members would canvass to find new members to join the Board.

ACTION: Officers to identify training needs by next meeting.

ACTION: Board Members to canvas for new members.

ACTION: Chairman and Vice Chairman to email Kevin Taylor all details of additional 
training that had been carried out.

NEW OR AMENDED RISKS 

No new or amended risks identified.

IDENTIFIED OR REGISTERED BREACHES 

Wokingham Schools – Wokingham BC has for the last 12 years outsourced its payroll function 
to a third party provider. When the contract was initially entered into by Wokingham BC an 
assumption was made that all the data to be passed between payroll and pensions had 
previously been done electronically but it had been done by paper. As a result, over the years 
it has become clear that the quality of the pension records maintained by the Borough in 
respect of scheme members employed directly at Wokingham maintain schools has slowly 
worsened.. This matter came to a head last year when the Pension Fund decided not to issue 
the 2017 annual benefits statements to this group of members.

All other members of the Fund (around 97% of members) received their statements within the 
statutory deadline of 31 August.  Consideration was given to reporting this statutory failure to 
the Pensions Regulator (tPR) but it was decided that this matter was not of material 
significance providing an appropriate action plan to rectify the problem was put in place 
without delay.  The Pension Fund has therefore entered onto a data matching exercise with all 
of the  48 Wokingham schools affected.

The action plan has been agreed with both Wokingham BC and its thirds party payroll provider 
with the aim of issuing the 2017 annual benefit statements by the end of May 2018 and to 
issue all 2018 statements by August 2018. The Pension Fund has made it clear to 
Wokingham BC that if these aims are not achieved they would be reported to the Pensions 
Regulator and that any fines  were incurred would be passed on to Wokingham BC.

The Board asked if this risk had been included on the Wokingham Borough Council risk 
register and Kevin Taylor did not know, however, an Elected Member of Wokingham BC doe 
sit  on the Pension Fund Advisory Panel and so  maybe aware of the risk.

Kevin Taylor  attended a bursar group in Wokingham to advise them of the action plan and the 
role they had to play in it.. Since then  Kevin has contacted each school directly. The 16/17 
contributions had been posted and further information was being collated from the payroll 
provider.

12



Kevin Taylor informed the Board that as part of the action plan Wokingham BC were 
committed to onboarding i-Connect once all pension records had been updated accordingly.

The Board Unanimously endorsed the approach and agreed that it be added to the risk 
register.

ACTION: Add to risk register.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS 

To consider passing the following resolution:-
 
“That under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be 
excluded from the remainder of the meeting whilst discussion takes place on item 14 
on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
Paragraphs 1-7 of part I of Schedule 12A of the Act"

RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: to exclude the public while confidential 
discussions relating to funding were carried out.

The meeting, which began at 1.20 pm, finished at 3.30 pm

CHAIRMAN……………………………….

DATE………………………………..........

13



This page is intentionally left blank



15

Agenda Item 6



16



17



18



19

Agenda Item 8



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank



39

Agenda Item 10



This page is intentionally left blank



41

Agenda Item 11



42



43



44



45

Agenda Item 12



46



47



48



49



50



51

Agenda Item 13



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115

Agenda Item 14



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

117

Agenda Item 19
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6a, 7 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Minutes
	6 Pension Panel Minutes and Stewardship Report
	8 GDPR Update
	9 Action Tracker
	10 Review of Board Workplan
	11 Review of Declarations of Interest
	12 Review of Investment Strategy Statement
	13 Review of Fund's Annual Report and Accounts
	14 Training Requirements
	19 Minutes

